
 
 
 

Currituck County 
Board of Adjustment Agenda 
Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

August 8, 2013, 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

7:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER 
A. Roll Call 
B. Announce Quorum Being Met 
C. Approval of Agenda 
D. Ask for Disqualifications 

 
Item 1  Approval of July 11, 2013 minutes  
 
 OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Item 2 BOA 13-05 CHRISTOPHER SUSKO: Appeal of administrator’s determination that 

all vehicle maintenance associated with the non-accessory home occupation for a 
limousine/taxi service be behind the fence/gate. The property is located at 102 
North Sea Breeze, Tax Map 76, Parcel 80B, Fruitville Township. 

   
  NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Item 3 BOA 13-06 GREEN ACRES LAND DEVELOPMENT: Appeal of administrator’s 

decision that the discharge of water from the mine and removal of stock pile 
material is considered mining activities. The property is located at 7177 Caratoke 
Hwy, Tax Map 109, Parcels 61 & 61A, Poplar Branch Township. 

 
Item 4  ANNOUCEMENTS 
 
Item 5  ADJOINMENT 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
CAMERON TABOR 
Chairman 
 
THERESA DOZIER 
Vice-Chairman 
 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
C SHAY BALLANCE 
DONNA MCCLOUD 
MICHAEL PAINTER 
DAVID PALMER 
VIVIAN SIMPSON 
 



  7/11/2013 BOA Minutes: Page 1 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING 

July 11, 2013 
 
REGULAR MEETING  
The Currituck County Board of Adjustment met on July 11, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Historic Currituck County Courthouse.  The following members were present: David 
Palmer, Cameron Tabor, Michael Painter, Vivian Simpson, Donna McCloud, and C. 
Shay Balance. Theresa Dozier was absent. Brad Schuler, Planner; Stacey Smith, Code 
Enforcement Officer/Board of Adjustment Clerk; and Ben Gallop, Board of Adjustment 
Attorney; were also present.   
 
Mr. Tabor called the meeting to order and announced a quorum have been met with 
four regular members and one alternate member.   
 
Mr. Tabor asked if there were any changes to the agenda. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated the applicant for item three has requested to continuance to due to 
family emergency. 
 
David Palmer motioned to approve the agenda. Michael Painter 2nd the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 2: Approval of June 13, 2013 Minutes 
 
David Palmer motioned to approve the June 13, 2013 minutes with no changes.         
Shay Balance 2nd the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 3: BOA 13-05 CHRISTOPHER SUSKO: Appeal of administrator’s determination 
that all vehicle maintenance associated with the non-accessory home occupation for a 
limousine/taxi service be behind the fence/gate. The property is located at 102 North 
Sea Breeze, Tax Map 76, Parcel 80B, Fruitville Township. 
 
Michael Palmer motioned to grant the continuance to the next meeting. Shy Balance 2nd 
the motion and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss Cameron Tabor motioned for adjournment.        
Vivian Simpson 2nd the motion and the motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at 7:12 pm 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Stacey Smith  
Code Enforcement Officer/BOA Clerk 



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Adjustment 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: July 3, 2013 
 
Re:  BOA 13-05 Susko Appeal 
 
 
 
Chris Susko is appealing the administrator determination that all vehicle maintenance 
associated with his non-accessory home occupation for a limousine/taxi service must be behind 
the fence/gate shown on the approved site plan.  
 
The Board of Adjustment issued a conditional use permit to Mr. Susko on April 11, 2011 to 
operate a limousine/taxi service at his residence at 102 Seabreeze Lane N in Knotts Island.  
Additional conditions were placed on the permit including: 
 

“6. The two vehicles associated with the business shall be stored in the back yard as 
 indicated on the site plan.” 

 
Originally staff interpreted this condition to allow for minor maintenance to be conducted 
outside of the fenced/gated area due to it being short term in nature.  However, that 
interpretation changed after reviewing the audio recording from the August 11, 2011 BOA 
meeting as requested by an adjoining property owner.  At the August 11, 2011 meeting, Mr. 
Susko requested modifications to his conditional use permit including to not install the 
fence/gate from his house to the fence along the property line.   
 
In the audio recording of the meeting, Richard Black of 108 Seabreeze Lane N stated his 
concerns regarding maintenance of the vehicles and that the vehicle should be maintained 
behind the fence and gate.  Mr. Bryan Bass, Chairman of the BOA, also stated the concern of 
a neighboring property owner was the visible maintenance of the vehicles including changing 
oil and washing and that it should adhere to the original condition of storing the vehicles in the 
back yard.  Staff believes it was the intent of the Board to have all maintenance occur behind 
the fence/gate in the area designated for the limo parking as shown on the approved site 
plan. 
 
 
 
 
 



The County submits the following attachments:  
 

o Attachment 1:  Letter of Determination dated May 21, 2013 from Brad Schuler, 
Planner I. 

o Attachment 2:  Appeal application. 
o Attachment 3:  Approved site plan. 
o Attachment 4:  Conditional use permit issued April 11, 2011. 
o Attachment 5:  The minutes of the modification request from the August 11, 2011 BOA 

meeting.  
o Attachment 6:  CD of audio recording: 
  Track 1: Beginning of agenda items.  
  Track 2: Richard Black concerns over maintenance of vehicles.   
  Track 3: Bryan Bass’ summary. 

 



 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 

Planning and Community Development Department 
Planning and Zoning Division 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

Telephone (252) 232-3055 / Fax (252) 232-3026 
 
May 21, 2013 
 
Todd Whitehead  
104 Sea Breeze North 
Knotts Island, NC 27950 
 
Christopher Susko  
102 Sea Breeze North 
Knotts Island, NC 27950 
 

Re: Letter of Determination 
 
Dear Mr. Whitehead and Mr. Susko, 
 
After further review of the audio file of August 11, 2011 Board of Adjustment (BOA) meeting per Mr. 
Whitehead’s request, we make the following determinations regarding Conditional Use Permit BOA 11-
05 issued to Christopher Susko to allow a non-accessory home occupation for a limousine/taxi service:  
 

• All maintenance including service and washing of the two vehicles associated with the 
limousine/taxi service shall be performed behind the fence/gate in the area designated for the 
limo parking as shown on the approved site plan. 

• The fence in question meets the fencing maintenance standards in Section 5.3.8 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO). The fence is not leaning more than ten degrees. 

• Any future landscaping that needs to be replaced must meet the current standards of the UDO 
including a minimum planting size of two caliper inches or height of eight feet for canopy trees. 

 
Mr. Bryan Bass, Chairman of the BOA at the time of the meeting, in speaking about the proposed 
amendments to the conditional use permit as requested by Mr. Susko, stated that the concern of a 
neighboring property owner was the visible maintenance of the vehicles including changing oil and 
washing and that it should adhere to the original condition of storing the vehicles in the back yard.  
Staff believes it was the intent of the Board to have all maintenance occur behind the fence/gate in the 
area designated for the limo parking as shown on the approved site plan.   
 
Again, staff will continue to work with Mr. Susko as he replaces the dead landscaping and gate.  Shall 
he not complete the work within a reasonable time frame, we will seek alternate enforcement measures.  
It is our ultimate goal to achieve compliance with the UDO and conditional use permit. 
 
The above determinations can be appealed to the Board of Adjustment within 30 days of receipt of this 
letter.  
 

Attachment #1
3 of 13



Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions and/or concerns regarding this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Brad Schuler 
Planner I 
 
 

Attachment #1
4 of 13



Attachment #2
5 of 13



Attachment #2
6 of 13



Attachment #3
7 of 13



Attachment #4
8 of 13



Attachment #4
9 of 13



Attachment #4
10 of 13



  8/11/11 BOA Minutes: Page 17 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

Mr. Bass asked how long would it take him to complete the work that was required 
when the original conditional use permit was granted. 
 
Mr. Susko stated he could provide a bond for the trees within a week if necessary.   
 
Mr. Bass questioned the time frame for the completion of the fence. 
 
Mr. Susko said it would take 30 days. 
 
Mr. Palmer asked about the requirement for the trees and there location. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated the trees weren’t to serve as a buffer for the fence and there was no 
requirement in the ordinance for which side the trees should go on. 
 
Mr. Bass asked if the violations were corrected would the appellant then be in 
compliance with the original conditional use permit. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated yes. 
 
Mr. Palmer questioned the appeal and amendments to the conditional use permit. 
 
Mr. Gallop explained they were different cases to be heard separately.  
 
Mr. Bass moved to close the public hearing.  Ms. Dozier seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously.   
 
ACTION 
 
Mr. Conner moved to uphold the administrator’s decision that conditional use permit  
11-05 was in violation.  Mr. Ferebee seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
BOA 11-05 CHRISTOPHER SUSKO: Conditional use permit to allow a non-
accessory home occupation for a limousine/taxi service located at 102 Seabreeze 
Lane N in Knotts Island, 0076-000-080B-0000, Fruitville Township.   
  
DISCUSSION 
 
Ms. Susko stated he didn’t not feel the gate was necessary since the bufferyard had 
been changed from a “C” to an “A”. 
 
Mr. Bass asked about the requirement for the gate. 
 

Attachment #5
11 of 13



  8/11/11 BOA Minutes: Page 18 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

Mr. Schuler said the original site plan that was approved showed a gate from the house 
to the fence and the limousines were to be parked behind the gate.  He stated Mr. 
Susko was also asking to change his hours of operation. 
 
Mr. Susko stated his ideal hours of operation from 6 am to Midnight.  He also stated 
since he lives at the property he should be able to not be subject to those hours 
because there are times when he is no longer conducting business but will still be 
driving the limousine.  
 
Mr. Bass questioned the current hours of operation.  He asked what days would he like 
to extend the hours of operation as previously mentioned. 
 
Mr. Susko stated 8 am to 9 pm every day of the week.  He said he would like to have 
extended hours on Friday and Saturday with the other days of the week remaining the 
same as they were.  He said that the only people that come to his house are the drivers, 
he does not have customers come to his house. 
 
Mr. Palmer questioned the request for the change to the fence requirement. 
 
Mr. Bass explained the changes that were being requested. 
 
Mr. Schuler said there was also a request to park the limousines on the current 
driveway and not be required to park them behind a fence. 
 
Mr. Palmer asked about the location of the trees. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated they were required to be planted along the front and rear property 
line as well as on the side with the fence. 
 
Mr. Gallop asked if the new site plan showed the tree alignment the same as the 
previous site plan. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated since he was choosing to plant larger trees there were less trees 
than on the original plan but it still met the bufferyard requirement.   
 
Mr. Whitehead stated his opinion in regards to the hours of operation.  He said there 
was a parking pad required in addition to the gate on the fence. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated a parking pad was not required.  The use was a non-accessory 
home occupation and parking pads are not required for residential driveways. 
 
Ms. Smith reviewed the minutes from the April 2011 meeting in regards to the parking 
pad. 
 
Ms. Tammy Susko commented on the hours of operation.  She stated that the 
limousines were no louder than a regular car.  She said due to her work schedule she 

Attachment #5
12 of 13



  8/11/11 BOA Minutes: Page 19 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

doesn’t get home until after 12 am and there would be no way to tell if it was her 
personal car or a limousine. 
 
Ms. Penny Muller stated she was a driver for Mr. Susko.  She stated she was opposed 
to the gate requirement because it was hard to get a limousine in and out of a small 
area. 
 
Mr. Riggs stated his opinion about a parking pad and how that could create negative 
drainage onto the neighboring properties. 
 
Mr. Richard Black stated he was three properties down from Mr. Susko’s property.  He 
explained his concerns with the limousine business in a residential neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Susko stated that since the installation of the fence he has had more opposition 
from his neighbors about the fence rather than the business itself.  He explained the 
reason for installing fence in the way it was installed.  He questioned if Currituck County 
had a noise ordinance.  He stated there were other vehicles in the neighborhood that 
were louder than his limousines. 
 
Ms. Smith said a noise ordinance was implemented by the Sheriff’s department. 
 
Mr. Bass questioned if there was a requirement to which two vehicles could be on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Schuler stated he was allowed to have two work related vehicles on his property 
and which two was not specified. 
 
Mr. Bass moved to close the public hearing.  Mr. Conner seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
ACTION 
 
Mr. Bass moved to amend the hours of operation for conditional use permit 11-05 to 
Sunday through Thursday 8 am to 9 pm, and Friday through Sat 7 am-11 pm while all 
the other original conditions remained unchanged.  Mr. Conner seconded the motion 
and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Board discussed the time frame for the work to be completed. 
 
Mr. Conner moved to allow 30 days for all work to be completed.  Mr. Ferebee 
seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment #5
13 of 13



 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Adjustment 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: July 31, 2013 
 
Re:  BOA 13-06 Green Acres Land Development Appeal 
 
 
 
Green Acres Land Development is appealing the administrator’s decision that the discharge of 
water from the mine and removal of stock pile material is considered mining activities and 
requires a use permit. The property is located at 7177 Caratoke Hwy in Jarvisburg, Tax Map 
109, Parcels 61 & 61A. 
 
A special use permit was issued to Green Acres Land Development on August 19, 2002 to 
operate a sand mine. The permit was valid for ten years which has expired therefore they are 
operating without proper permits.  
 
In Chapter 10, Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) defines an Extractive Industry as:  
  

“Extractive Industry 
A use involving on-site extraction of surface or subsurface mineral products or 
natural resources. Typical uses are quarries, borrow pits, sand and gravel 
operations, mining, and soil mining. Specifically excluded from this use is grading 
and removal of dirt associated with an approved site plan or subdivision or 
excavations associated with, and for the improvement of, a bona fide agricultural 
use.” 

 
The County observed operation of the extractive industry on May 9, 2013 and May 21, 2013 
 
The County submits the following: 
 

1) Attachment 1: Notice of Violation dated May 24, 2013. 
2) Attachment 2: Pictures of the violations taken on May 9, 2013 & May 21, 2013.   

 
 

 

ssmith
Typewritten Text



rqpllw - 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Code Enforcement Program 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, NC 27929 
(252) 232-6027 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION # 
VI 3-14 

Green Acres Land Development 
P0 Box 332 
Powells Point, NC 27966 

Violation Date: Inspection Date: 

May 24, 2013 May 21, 2013 

Property Address: PIN #: 
7177 Caratoke Hwy 0109-000-0061-0000 & 0109-000-061A-0000 

Violation Description: 

The discharge of water from the mine and removal of stock pile material is considered mining activities and requires a use 
permit. The Green Acres Conditional Use Permit expired on November 22, 2012 therefore you are operating without 

proper county permits. 

Compliance Request: UDO Code Reference: 

Subsection 4.1.2: Use Table & Subsection 4.2.5.A: 
Extractive industry 

Stop all mining activities until such time a use permit has 
been obtained from the county. Required Compliance Date: 

June 10, 2012 

Please be advised that failure to comply with the above may result in civil penalties assessed by the 
County of up to $500.00 per day for each day that the violation exists. 

If you wish to appeal this decision, you have ten (10) days from receipt of this notice in which to 
submit an appeal application to the Board of Adjustment or this decision shall be considered final. 

Applications can be obtained and submitted in the Community Development Department. 

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text
County Attachment #1

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text



ssmith
Typewritten Text
County Attachment #2



ssmith
Typewritten Text

ssmith
Typewritten Text
County Attachment #2







Assemble 
Fcord of Appeal 

L Saff Review and 
ftpert 

Schedule 
HeprIng 

Appeal 
Review Process 

( 	Conference 

() 
ofAppealal 

Contact Information 	 I 
Currituck County 	 Phone: 252.232.3055 
Planning and Community Development 	 Fax: 	252.232.3026 

153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 

Currituck, NC 27929 

Website: 

Step 1: Application Submittal and Acceptance 	 I 
The applicant must submit a complete application packet within thirty days of the date of the 

interpretation or decision being appealed, or within ten days of the date of the notice of 

violation being appealed. A complete application packet consists of the following: 

• Complete Currituck County Appeal Application. 

• Application Fee ($1 50). 

On receiving on application, staff shall, determine whether the application is complete or 

incomplete. A complete application contains all the information and materials listed above, and 

is in sufficient detail to evaluate and prepare a staff report. If an application is determined to 

be incomplete, the applicant may correct the deficiencies and resubmit the application for 

completeness determination within the thirty or ten day appeal window. 

After accepting the appeal application, staff shall review it and prepare a written report. Staff 

shall transmit the appeal and the record of material considered by the decision-maker in making 

the decision or interpretation, including but not limited to the application and support materials, 

staff report, other plans, documents, reports, and studies considered in making the decision, and 

any minutes, transcripts, or record of the meetings held to consider and make the decision. These 

materials, plus the Land Use Plan, Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), and any other relevant 

adopted plan, shall constitute the record of the appeal. 

Step 3: Public Hearing Scheduling and Public Notification 	 I 
Staff shall ensure the public hearing is scheduled for a regularly scheduled Board of Adjustment meeting or a 

meeting specially called for by the Board of Adjustment. The required public hearing with the Board of 

Adjustment shall be scheduled so there is sufficient time for a staff report to be prepared and for the public 

notification requirements to be satisfied under state law. 

The application shall meet the following public notification requirements: 

o Published Notice 
Staff shall publish a notice of the hearing once a week for two successive calendar weeks in a newspaper 

having general circulation in the county. The first time notice is published, it shall not be less than 10 days 

nor more than 25 days before the date fixed for the hearing. 

Appeal Application 

Page 1 of 7 



Mailed N o tice * 

Staff shall be responsible for preparing and mailing a written notice between 10 and 25 days before the 

public hearing. Notice shall be mailed to: 

All owners of the land subject to the application; 

The applicant, if different from the land owner; 

Li 	All owners of land within 200 feet of the property lines of land subject to the application (including 

owners of land located outside the county) whose address is known by reference to the latest ad 

valorem tax records; and 

Commanders of military bases located within five miles of the subject application when the 

development proposal affects the type of uses allowed. 

Posted N otice* 

At least 10 days before the public hearing, posted notice shall be made by staff. A sign shall be placed 

in a conspicuous location as to be clearly visible to the traveled portion of the respective street. Where 

the land subject to the notice does not have frontage on a public street, the sign shall be erected on the 

nearest street right-of-way with an attached notation generally indicating the direction and distance to 

the land subject to the application. 

*Ma iled and Posted notification are required only in cases where the appeal pertains to a specific parcel of 

land. 

Step 4: Public Hearing Procedures, and Decision-Making Body Review and Decision 	 I 
Staff will present the application and staff report to the Board of Adjustment. The applicant must attend the 

public hearing to present evidence and answer any questions the board or public may have about the 

application. The Board of Adjustment shall conduct a quasi-judicial hearing that is subject to procedural rules 

set forth by the courts including having all persons who intend to present evidence to the board be sworn. 

Quasi-judicial public hearings are subject to the following: 

o Opportunity to Present Testimony and Evidence 
Any affected party shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to present testimony and evidence in 

support of or in opposition to the application, and to ask questions of the applicant and the applicant's 

representatives and county staff and county staff's representatives. At the discretion of the person 

chairing the body conducting the public hearing, an affected party may be granted an opportunity to ask 

questions of any other member of the public who has testified at the hearing. 

C) Not Bound by Rules of Evidence 
Except as otherwise provided in the North Carolina General Statutes, the board is not bound by the rules 

of evidence, or limited to consideration of evidence that is admissible in a court of law. The board may 

consider all testimony and evidence it deems competent and material to the application under 

consideration. 

o Cross Examination 
Any inquiry under cross-examination shall be limited to matters raised in the direct examination of the 

witness. No re-direct or re-cross shall be allowed unless requested by the applicant, and affected party, 

or the county - who shall state the desired area of inquiry - and the request is approved by the person 

chairing the body conducting the hearing. If re-direct or re-cross is allowed, it shall be limited to questions 

of the witness on issues raised in the cross-examination. 

0 Ex Parte Communication 
Ex parte communication between an applicant or an affected party and a member of the board 

reviewing or making a decision on the application is prohibited, and must be disclosed during the public 

hearing, if it concurs. 

The Board of Adjustment shall decide on the application base solely on the record of the appeal, as 

supplemented by arguments presented at the public hearing. The decision shall be one of the following: 

• Affirmation of the decision or interpretation (in whole or in part); 

• Modification of the decision or interpretation (in whole or in part); or 

• Reversal of the decision or interpretation (in whole or in part). 

A vote to reverse or modify a decision or interpretation shall require a four/fifths majority of Board of 

Adjustment members present and voting. 

Appeal Application 
Page 2 of 7 



In deciding on the appeal application, the board is limited to the following determinations, which shall be 

based on clear and substantial evidence in the record: 

o The decision-maker did not make an error or correctly applied the standards of the UDO in making the 

decision or interpretation; 

o The decision-maker made an error in determining whether a standard was met. The record most indicate 

that an error in judgment occurred or facts, plans, or regulations were misread in determining whether the 

particular standard was or was not met; 

o The decision-maker made the decision based on a standard not contained in the UDO or other appropriate 

county ordinances, regulations, or state law, or that a standard more strict or broad than the standard 

established in the UDO was applied ;  or 

o The decision-maker made an error in applying a standard or measuring a standard. 

Where conflicting evidence exists, the appeal is limited to determining what evidence or testimony bears the 

greatest credibility in terms of documentation and qualifications of those making the determination. 

The Board of Adjustment shall not hear any evidence or make any decision based on hardships or special 

conditions. Such matters may only be considered in the context of an application for a variance or use permit. 

Appeal Application 

Page 3 of 7 



This page left blank for formatting purposes. 

Appeal Application 

Page 4 of 7 



Appeal OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 

Application 
Case Number:  

Date Filed: 

Gate Keeper: 

Amount Paid: 

Contact Information 	 I 
APPLICANT: 
	

PROPERTY OWNER: 

Name: 	 Jeffrey A. Newbern, Sr. 	 Name: 	 Jeffrey A. Newbern, Sr. 

Address: 	P0 Box 332 	 Address: 
	

P0 Box 332 

Powell's Point, NC 27966 
	

Powell's Point, NC 27966 

Telephone: 	(252) 491-2121 	 Telephone: 	(252) 491-2121 

E-Mail Address:galanddev@embargmail.com 	 E-Mail Address: galanddev@embargmait.com  

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER: 	SAME 

Property Information 	 I 
Physical Street Address: 7177 Caratoke Highway, Jarvisburg, NC 

Location: 0.5 mi south of Jarvisburg, NC Post Office on east side of Caratoke Highway (US 1 58). 

Parcel Identification Number(s): 0109-000-0061-0000&0109-000-061A-000 

Statement of Error, or Improper Decision or Interpretation 	 I 
I wish to appeal 0: 	LI Decision or Interpretation 	U Notice of Violation 

The determination being dated 05/24/2013 (Violation Date) 

Grounds for appeal 

State the facts you are prepared to prove to the Board of Adjustment that should lead the board to conclude that the 
decision of the administrator was made in error. 

Please see attached document. 

Please include all related support materials with the application. 

I, the u1Tdersigne, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the best 

of my nowIedginformation, and belief. All information submitted and required as part of this 

applicatio rocess shall become public record. 

June 5, 2013 

AI nt/Applièant 	 Date 
Appeal Application 

Page 5 of 7 



Grounds for appeal (from pag e  

State the facts you are prepared to prove to the Board of Adjustment that should lead the board to 
conclude that the decision of the administrator was made in error. 

h Per Article 7 of the N.C. Mining Act of 1971,   74-49(7b), mining is defined as "any activity or process 

constituting all or part of a process for the extraction or removal of minerals, ores, soils, and other solid 

matter from their original location". Mr. Newbern submits that removal of previously excavated soil 

materials from stockpiled locations does not fit the definition of mining since excavation has ceased for 

some time at Green Acres Sand Mine and stockpiles currently being removed are not in the original 

location of the soil materials. 

2: Dewatering is not mentioned in Article 7 as part of the definition of general mining. 

3: Mr. Newbern has filed an application on May 23, 2013 for a Currituck County Use Permit to conduct 

sand mining, which is in process of review now. Mr. Newbern would suffer severe financial hardship if 

cessation of dewatering was required before the Use Permit was approved, and he is anticipating 

approval of the application for a Use Permit within a short time. Mr. Newbern is hereby requesting the 

Currituck County Board of Adjustment to allow him to maintain dewatering activities and removal of 

stockpiled materials in the mine until the Use Permit has been approved. 



Owner Verification 	 I 
If the person who is requesting the Board of Adjustment to take action on a particular piece of property is 
not the owner of the property, or under contract to purchase, then the actual owner of the land must 

complete this section. If the owner is the appellant/application please do not complete this section. 

Dear Sir or Madame: 

I am the owner of the property located at 

I hereby authorize 

to appear with my consent before the Board of Adjustment in order to request an appeal or interpretation 

at the above location. I authorize you to advertise and present this matter in my name as the owner of the 

property. 

Further, I hereby authorize county officials to enter my property for purposes of determining zoning 

compliance. 

If you have any questions, you may contact me at the following at the address, phone number, or email 

address listed on this application. 

Respectfully yours, 

Owner 	 Date 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this theday of 	20. 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

Appeal Application 

Page 6 of 7 



Appeal Submittal Checklist 

Staff will use the following checklist to determine the completeness of your application. Only complete 

applications will be accepted. 

Appeal 
Submittal Checklist 

Date Received: 	 BOA Date:  

Project Name: Green Acres land Development Sand Mine 

Applicant/Property Owner: Jeffrey A. Newbern, Sr. / Green Acres Land Development, Inc. 

Pre-application Conference (optional) 
Pre-application Conference was held on 	 and the following people were present: 

Comments 

Appeal Application 

Page 7 of 7 

Appeal Submittal Checklist 

1 	Complete Appeal application 

2 	Application fee ($150) 

3 	All related support materials/evidence. 

4 10 hard copies of ALL documents 	 - 

5 	1 PDF digital copy of all plans AND documents (ex. Compact Disk - e-mail not acceptable) 

For Staff Only 



Article 7.  

The Mining Act of 1971.  
§ 74-49.  Definitions. 

Wherever used or referred to in this Article, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

(1)        "Affected land" means the surface area of land that is mined, the surface area 

of land associated with a mining activity so that soil is exposed to accelerated 

erosion, the surface area of land on which overburden and waste is deposited, 

and the surface area of land used for processing or treatment plant, stockpiles, 

nonpublic roads, and settling ponds. 

(1a)      "Affiliate" has the same meaning as in 17 Code of Federal Regulations § 

240.12(b)-2 (1 April 1992 Edition), which defines "affiliate" as a person that 

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled 

by, or is under common control of another person. 

(2)        "Borrow pit" means an area from which soil or other unconsolidated materials 

are removed to be used, without further processing, for highway construction 

and maintenance. 

(3)        "Commission" means the North Carolina Mining and Energy Commission 

created by G.S. 143B-293.1. 

(4)        "Department" means the Department of Environment and Natural Resources. 

Whenever in this Article the Department is assigned duties, they may be 

performed by the Secretary or an employee of the Department designated by 

the Secretary. 

(5)        "Land" shall include submerged lands underlying any river, stream, lake, sound, 

or other body of water and shall specifically include, among others, estuarine 

and tidal lands. 

(6)        "Minerals" means soil, clay, coal, stone, gravel, sand, phosphate, rock, metallic 

ore, and any other solid material or substance of commercial value found in 

natural deposits on or in the earth. 

(7)        "Mining" means: 

a.         The breaking of the surface soil in order to facilitate or accomplish the 

extraction or removal of minerals, ores, or other solid matter. 

b.      Any activity or process constituting all or part of a process for the 

extraction or removal of minerals, ores, soils, and other solid matter 

from their original location. 

c.         The preparation, washing, cleaning, or other treatment of minerals, ores, 

or other solid matter so as to make them suitable for commercial, 

industrial, or construction use. 

"Mining" does not include: 

a.         Those aspects of deep mining not having significant effect on the surface, 

where the affected land does not exceed one acre in area. 

b.         Mining operations where the affected land does not exceed one acre in 

area. 

c.         Plants engaged in processing minerals produced elsewhere and whose 

refuse does not affect more than one acre of land. 

d.         Excavation or grading when conducted solely in aid of on-site farming 

or of on-site construction for purposes other than mining. 



e.         Removal of overburden and mining of limited amounts of any ores or 

mineral solids when done only for the purpose and to the extent 

necessary to determine the location, quantity, or quality of any natural 

deposit, provided that no ores or mineral solids removed during 

exploratory excavation or mining are sold, processed for sale, or 

consumed in the regular operation of a business, and provided further 

that the affected land resulting from any exploratory excavation does 

not exceed one acre in area. 

f.          Excavation or grading where all of the following apply: 

1.         The excavation or grading is conducted to provide soil or other 

unconsolidated material to be used without further processing 

for a single off-site construction project for which an erosion and 

sedimentation control plan has been approved in accordance 

with Article 4 of Chapter 113A of the General Statutes. 

2.         The affected land, including nonpublic access roads, does not 

exceed five acres. 

3.         The excavation or grading is completed within one year. 

4.         The excavation or grading does not involve blasting, the removal 

of material from rivers or streams, the disposal of off-site waste 

on the affected land, or the surface disposal of groundwater 

beyond the affected land. 

5.         The excavation or grading is not in violation of any local 

ordinance. 

6.         An erosion and sedimentation control plan for the excavation or 

grading has been approved in accordance with Article 4 of 

Chapter 113A of the General Statutes. 

(8)        "Neighboring" means in close proximity, in the immediate vicinity, or in actual 

contact. 

(9)        "Operator" means any person or persons, any partnership, limited partnership, 

or corporation, or any association of persons, engaged in mining operations, 

whether individually, jointly, or through subsidiaries, agents, employees, or 

contractors. 

(10)      "Overburden" means the earth, rock, and other materials that lie above the 

natural deposit of minerals. 

(10a)    "Parent" has the same meaning as in 17 Code of Federal Regulations § 

240.12(b)-2 (1 April 1992 Edition), which defines "parent" as an affiliate that 

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls another 

person. 

(11)      "Peak" means overburden removed from its natural position and deposited 

elsewhere in the shape of conical piles or projecting points. 

(12)      "Reclamation" means the reasonable rehabilitation of the affected land for 

useful purposes, and the protection of the natural resources of the surrounding 

area. Although both the need for and the practicability of reclamation will 

control the type and degree of reclamation in any specific instance, the basic 

objective will be to establish on a continuing basis the vegetative cover, soil 

stability, water conditions and safety conditions appropriate to the area. 



(13)      "Reclamation plan" means the operator's written proposal as required and 

approved by the Department for reclamation of the affected land, which shall 

include but not be limited to: 

a.         Proposed practices to protect adjacent surface resources; 

b.         Specifications for surface gradient restoration to a surface suitable for 

the proposed subsequent use of the land after reclamation is completed, 

and proposed method of accomplishment; 

c.         Manner and type of revegetation or other surface treatment of the affected 

areas; 

d.         Method of prevention or elimination of conditions that will be hazardous 

to animal or fish life in or adjacent to the area; 

e.         Method of compliance with State air and water pollution laws; 

f.          Method of rehabilitation of settling ponds; 

g.         Method of control of contaminants and disposal of mining refuse; 

h.         Method of restoration or establishment of stream channels and stream 

banks to a condition minimizing erosion, siltation, and other pollution; 

i.          Maps and other supporting documents as may be reasonably required 

by the Department; and 

j.          A time schedule that meets the requirements of G.S. 74-53. 

(14)      "Refuse" means all waste soil, rock, mineral, scrap, tailings, slimes, and other 

material directly connected with the mining, cleaning, and preparation of 

substances mined and shall include all waste materials deposited on or in the 

permit area from other sources. 

(15)      "Ridge" means overburden removed from its natural position and deposited 

elsewhere in the shape of a long, narrow elevation. 

(16)      "Spoil bank" means a deposit of excavated overburden or refuse. 

(16a)    "Subsidiary" has the same meaning as in 17 Code of Federal Regulations § 

240.12(b)-2 (1 April 1992 Edition), which defines "subsidiary" as an affiliate 

that is directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controlled by 

another person. 

(17)      "Termination of mining" means cessation of mining operations with intent not 

to resume, or cessation of mining operations as a result of expiration or 

revocation of the permit of the operator. Whenever the Department shall have 

reason to believe that a mining operation has terminated, the Department shall 

give the operator written notice of its intention to declare the operation 

terminated, and the operator shall have an opportunity to appear within 30 days 

and present evidence that the operation is continuing; where the Department 

finds that the evidence is satisfactory, the Department shall not declare the 

mining operation terminated.  (1971, c. 545, s. 4; 1973, c. 1262, ss. 33, 86; 1977, 

c. 771, s. 4; c. 845, s. 1; 1989, c. 727, s. 218(13); 1993 (Reg. Sess., 1994), c. 

568, s. 1; 1997-443, s. 11A.119(a); 1999-82, s. 1; 2002-165, s. 2.1; 2012-143, 

s. 1(d).) 
 



rqpllw - 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Code Enforcement Program 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, NC 27929 
(252) 232-6027 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION # 
VI 3-14 

Green Acres Land Development 
P0 Box 332 
Powells Point, NC 27966 

Violation Date: Inspection Date: 

May 24, 2013 May 21, 2013 

Property Address: PIN #: 
7177 Caratoke Hwy 0109-000-0061-0000 & 0109-000-061A-0000 

Violation Description: 

The discharge of water from the mine and removal of stock pile material is considered mining activities and requires a use 
permit. The Green Acres Conditional Use Permit expired on November 22, 2012 therefore you are operating without 

proper county permits. 

Compliance Request: UDO Code Reference: 

Subsection 4.1.2: Use Table & Subsection 4.2.5.A: 
Extractive industry 

Stop all mining activities until such time a use permit has 
been obtained from the county. Required Compliance Date: 

June 10, 2012 

Please be advised that failure to comply with the above may result in civil penalties assessed by the 
County of up to $500.00 per day for each day that the violation exists. 

If you wish to appeal this decision, you have ten (10) days from receipt of this notice in which to 
submit an appeal application to the Board of Adjustment or this decision shall be considered final. 

Applications can be obtained and submitted in the Community Development Department. 






















	boa-agenda-13aug8
	boaminutes-13jul11DRAFT
	BOA Packet
	BOA 13-06 Packet
	BOA 13-06 Memo
	Newbern_NOV_052413
	DSCN0121
	DSCN0131
	NEWBERN APPEAL COVER
	Newbern_NOV_Appeal_Appl_060413
	Mining Act Article 7 Definitions
	Newbern_NOV_052413
	2013 SUP APPL SIGNED
	GALD mine map




